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requirements.  City funds can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, 
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental funds financial statements focus on 
near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be 
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental 
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term 
impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental funds 
balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The City maintains several individual governmental funds organized by their type (special 
revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds).  Information is presented separately in 
the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General, Library, State 
Gas Tax, Capital Improvements, and Thousand Oaks Housing Successor funds, which 
are considered to be major funds.  Data from the remaining governmental funds are 
combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of the 
nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements shown on 
pages 120-132. 
 
The City adopts a biennial appropriated budget for its General Fund and special revenue 
funds.  Budgetary comparison statements have been provided to demonstrate 
compliance with this budget on pages 33-36. 
 
The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 27-32 of this 
report. 
 
Proprietary funds are generally used to account for services for which the City charges 
outside customers or internal departments of the City.  Proprietary funds provide the same 
type of information as shown in the government-wide statements, only in more detail.  The 
City maintains the following two types of proprietary funds: 
 
 Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type 

activities in the government-wide financial statements.  The City uses enterprise 
funds to account for the operations of water, wastewater, golf course, transportation, 
solid waste management, and theatres. 
 

 Internal service funds are used to report activities that provide internal services for 
the City.  The City uses internal service funds to account for its liability, workers’ 
compensation, and vision insurance coverage.  Because internal service funds 
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predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have 
been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements.  The internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated 
presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.  Individual fund data for the 
internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements found on pages 
133-136. 

 
The basic proprietary funds financial statements can be found on pages 37-42 of this 
report. 
 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside 
the government.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial 
statements, because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s 
own programs.  
 
The basic fiduciary funds financial statements can be found on pages 43-44 of this report. 
 
Notes to basic financial statements 
 
The notes provide additional information essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to basic 
financial statements can be found on pages 45-110 of this report. 
 
Other information 
 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain Required Supplementary Information (RSI) concerning the City’s 
progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits 
(OPEB) to its hourly and full-time employees, the Schedules of Changes in Net Pension 
and OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, Schedule of Employer Contributions for pensions 
and OPEB, and Schedule of Investment Returns for pensions.  RSI can be found on 
pages 111-117 of this report. 
 
Combining statements for nonmajor governmental funds, internal service funds, and 
agency funds are presented immediately following the RSI.  Combining financial 
statements and schedules can be found on pages 118-143 of this report. 
 
Statistical tables regarding fiscal trends, revenue capacity, debt capacity, demographic 
and economic information, and operating information can be found on pages 144-174 of 
this report. 
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Governmental activities increased the City’s net position $12.3 million compared to the 
prior fiscal year’s increase of $0.3 million.  Key elements of the increase in net position 
were as follows: 
 

Program revenues decreased $0.1 million primarily due to decreases in charges for 
services of $3.2 million, offset by an increase in operating grants and contributions of 
$2.8 million, and an increase in capital grants and contributions of $0.3 million.  The 
major changes are highlighted below: 

 
 Charges for services decreased $3.2 million primarily due to a decrease of $3.3 

million in general government activity from a non-recurring reimbursement for 
Thousand Oaks Boulevard undergrounding project received in prior fiscal year. 
 

 Operating grants and contributions increased $2.8 million primarily due to an 
increase in gas tax revenues in transportation activity. 

 
 Capital grants and contributions increased $0.3 million in transportation activities 

primarily due to $1.2 million increase in grant revenue, offset by a $0.9 million 
decrease in developer fee revenue related to road improvement projects.  
 

General revenues increased $9.8 million primarily due to a $6.6 million increase in 
unrestricted investment/interest earnings, a $1.1 million increase in sales tax revenue, 
a $0.9 million increase in property tax revenue, and a $0.5 million increase in property 
tax in-lieu of vehicle license fee (VLF).  The major changes are highlighted below: 

 
 Interest earnings increased $6.6 million primarily due to a $5.5 million positive fair 

market value adjustment and $1.0 million investment income related to the 
establishment of the Section 115 Trust Pension Rate Stabilization Fund (Pension 
Trust). 

 Sales tax revenue increased $1.1 million primarily attributed to an overall increase 
in sales tax growth. 

 Property tax increased $0.9 million primarily due to an increase in assessed 
valuation over prior fiscal year. 
 

 Property tax in-lieu of VLF revenue increased $0.5 million and experienced similar 
growth as property tax since it is also linked to assessed valuations. 
 

Expenses decreased $2.6 million primarily due to a decrease of $3.2 million in culture 
and leisure, $1.4 million decrease in general government, offset by a $1.1 million 
increase in public safety and a $0.7 million increase in transportation.  These changes 
are highlighted below: 
 
 Culture and leisure expenses decreased $3.2 million primarily due to a $4.0 million 

non-recurring prior fiscal year expense of grant contribution to establish the 
Thousand Oaks Alliance for the Arts (TOARTS) to support performing arts 
operations, offset by a current fiscal year increase of $0.3 million pass-through 
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General Fund Expenditures for fiscal year 2018-19, including transfers out, decreased 
$4.9 million, or 5.8 percent compared to prior fiscal year.  The chart below compares 
general fund expenditures for the last two fiscal years followed by key information: 
 

Fiscal Year 
2018-19

Fiscal Year 
2017-18

Variance 
Over/(Under) 
Prior Fiscal 

Year

General government  $   18,728,427  $  20,438,373 (1,709,946)$    -8.4% 23.3%

Public safety       30,752,823      29,712,395 1,040,428       3.5% 38.3%

Transportation       10,473,184      10,441,154 32,030            0.3% 13.1%

Community development         9,664,252        9,655,245 9,007              0.1% 12.1%

Culture and leisure         2,246,422        5,711,116 (3,464,694)      -60.7% 2.8%

Capital outlay         1,510,112        2,071,172 (561,060)         -27.1% 1.9%

Other financing uses         6,780,505        7,065,729 (285,224)         -4.0% 8.5%

Total Expenditures 80,155,725$   85,095,184$   (4,939,459)$    -5.8% 100.0%

Comparison of General Fund Expenditures

% of Total

% of Increase/ 
(Decrease) 
Over Prior 
Fiscal Year

 
 
 Culture and leisure decreased $3.5 million primarily due to a non-recurring prior fiscal 

year grant expenditure of $4.0 million to establish the TOARTS to support performing 
arts operations. 
 

 General government decreased $1.7 million primarily due to a non-recurring prior 
fiscal year contribution of $2.5 million to the Conejo Recreation and Park District 
(CRPD) for construction of the Sapwi Trails Community Park; offset by a $0.8 million 
increase in salaries and benefits costs. 

 
 Public safety expenditures increased $1.0 million primarily due to an increase of in 

police contract costs. 
 

 Capital outlay expenditures decreased $0.6 million primarily due to a decrease in 
capital projects in the current fiscal year compared to prior fiscal year.  Current year 
projects include $0.4 million for Civic Arts Plaza parking structure improvements and 
energy savings upgrades, $0.3 million for Thousand Oaks Boulevard streetscape 
improvements, $0.2 million for Goebel Center flooring replacement, $0.2 million for 
Kavli Theatre renovation, and $0.1 million for Conejo Canyon bridge construction. 

 
Other Major Governmental Funds 
 
Library Fund 
 
The Library Fund provides for the operation of the City’s library system.  Property taxes 
and other revenues are restricted for library operations and maintenance expenditures.  
Due to General Fund support for the Library Fund to balance program appropriations, 
historically the fund balance has been zero. 
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The City’s Library Fund fund balance increased $0.4 million compared to an increase of 
less than $0.1 million in the prior fiscal year.  The $0.3 million net increase in fund balance 
is primarily due to an increase in revenues, excluding transfers in, of $0.3 million from 
property taxes due to an increase in assessed valuations and an increase of $0.1 million 
in charges for services. 
 
State Gas Tax Fund 
 
The State Gas Tax Fund accounts for revenues derived from gasoline purchases and 
federal and state grants which are restricted for the construction and maintenance of City 
streets and other street related projects. 
 
The City’s State Gas Tax Fund fund balance increased $2.8 million compared to an 
increase of $0.1 million in the prior fiscal year.  The net increase of $2.7 million in fund 
balance is primarily due to an increase of $1.6 million in Road Repair and Accountability 
Act (RRAA) and Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) revenue, $1.3 
million in federal and state grant revenue, $1.0 million increase from Transportation 
Development Act Article 8(a) revenue, offset by a $1.1 million increase in street-related 
project expenditures. 
 
Capital Improvements Fund 
 
The Capital Improvements Fund accounts for developer agreement and developer impact 
fee revenues and Successor Agency revenue bond proceeds which are used to finance 
road improvements, bridge improvements, undergrounding of utilities, as well as capital 
facilities fees restricted for public facilities. 
 
The fund balance of the Capital Improvements Fund decreased $4.2 million, compared 
to prior fiscal year’s increase of $2.5 million.  The $6.7 million net decrease is primarily 
due to an increase in expenditures of $4.6 million in pavement overlay, $0.9 million for 
Haigh Road Drainage Channel improvements, $0.4 million for the slurry program, and 
$1.0 million decrease in developer fee revenue. 
 
Thousand Oaks Housing Successor Fund 
 
The Thousand Oaks Housing Successor Fund accounts for specific revenues that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for housing functions performed by the City. As a result 
of the dissolution of the former Redevelopment Agency on February 1, 2012, the loans 
and notes were transferred to the Thousand Oaks Housing Successor Fund (refer to note 
15). 
 
The fund balance of the Thousand Oaks Housing Successor Fund increased $0.2 million, 
compared to prior fiscal year’s increase of $0.3 million.  The net decrease of $0.1 million 
is primarily due to an increase in salaries and benefits costs and a decrease in interest 
earnings. 
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 Governmental 
Activities 

 Business-type 
Activities  Total 

Assets:
Cash and investments (notes 1 and 2) $ 168,881,497 107,017,617 275,899,114
Receivables (notes 1 and 3):

Accounts 3,801,037 9,374,929 13,175,966
Accrued interest 8,937,450 563,553 9,501,003
Intergovernmental 11,567,241 2,057,001 13,624,242
Notes/loans 36,451,257 375,000 36,826,257

Internal balances 1,673,452 (1,673,452) -
Inventories - supplies (note 1) 619,538 508,435 1,127,973
Prepaid items and other assets (note 1) 2,303 205,201 207,504
Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and investments (notes 1 and 2) 21,408,739 5,635,822 27,044,561
Capital assets (notes 1 and 4):

Land 132,906,563 5,834,172 138,740,735
Intangibles, non-depreciable 840,555 133,538 974,093
Buildings and improvements 164,023,735 302,672,727 466,696,462
Equipment 12,149,663 14,585,082 26,734,745
Intangibles, depreciable 1,007,637 521,324 1,528,961
Infrastructure 488,990,074 - 488,990,074
Construction in progress 3,877,526 2,505,336 6,382,862
Accumulated depreciation (342,607,784) (154,610,713) (497,218,497)

Total assets 714,530,483 295,705,572 1,010,236,055

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred charges 134,000 - 134,000
Deferred pension items 11,089,116 4,252,043 15,341,159
Deferred OPEB items 1,533,285 758,125 2,291,410

Total deferred outflows of resources 12,756,401 5,010,168 17,766,569

Liabilities:
Accounts payable (note 1) 12,547,123 5,324,653 17,871,776
Accrued interest (note 1) 40,255 102,861 143,116
Due to other agencies (note 1) 263,078 25,664 288,742
Unearned revenue (note 1) 38,425,245 10,676,487 49,101,732
Deposits (note 1) - 684,035 684,035
Noncurrent liabilities (note 7):

      Due within one year (note 7) 4,116,553 2,765,194 6,881,747
      Due in more than one year (note 7) 15,565,170 7,301,637 22,866,807
Net pension liability 50,534,523 19,366,898 69,901,421
Net OPEB liability 6,250,802 2,381,710 8,632,512

Total liabilities 127,742,749 48,629,139 176,371,888

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred pension items 2,200,714 843,637 3,044,351
Deferred OPEB items 333,494 122,508 456,002

Total deferred inflows of resources 2,534,208 966,145 3,500,353

Net position:
Net investments in capital assets 449,973,221 163,612,492 613,585,713
Restricted for:

Assessment districts 8,986,452 - 8,986,452
Culture and leisure 407,083 - 407,083
Street related purposes 23,424,574 - 23,424,574
Community development 5,990,482 - 5,990,482
Debt service 8,353 - 8,353

Unrestricted 108,219,762 87,507,964 195,727,726
Total net position $ 597,009,927 251,120,456 848,130,383

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019

Primary Government
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 Expenses 
 Charges for 

Services 
 Operating Grants 
and Contributions 

 Capital Grants 
and Contributions 

Functions/Programs
Primary Government:

Governmental activities:
General government $ 20,652,373 7,400,502 180,757 -
Public safety 32,316,506 956,562 396,485 56,573
Transportation 29,658,476 5,675,414 6,501,414 2,622,262
Community development 10,657,941 5,428,584 2,325,169 -
Culture and leisure 11,283,170 485,072 55,920 56,158
Interest on long-term debt 503,916 - - -

Total governmental activities 105,072,382 19,946,134 9,459,745 2,734,993
Business-type activities:

Water 24,664,296 29,336,595 - -
Wastewater 21,293,236 23,076,241 - -
Golf Course 6,204,300 6,630,009 - -
Transportation 7,544,602 1,982,752 7,181,337 -
Solid Waste Management 1,296,438 1,731,389 - -
Theatres 4,703,728 4,321,991 501,196 -

Total business-type activities 65,706,600 67,078,977 7,682,533 -
Total Primary Government $ 170,778,982 87,025,111 17,142,278 2,734,993

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property tax
Property tax in-lieu of VLF
Sales taxes
Transient occupancy tax
Franchise taxes
Business tax
Property transfer tax
Other taxes

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenue
   Gain/(loss) from sale of property
Contributions not restricted for specific programs
Unrestricted investment/interest earnings

Transfers, net (note 5)
Total general revenues

Change in net position
Net position - beginning
Net position - ending

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Program Revenues

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2019
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 Governmental 
Activities 

 Business-type 
Activities  Total 

(13,071,114) - (13,071,114)
(30,906,886) - (30,906,886)
(14,859,386) - (14,859,386)

(2,904,188) - (2,904,188)
(10,686,020) - (10,686,020)

(503,916) - (503,916)
(72,931,510) - (72,931,510)

- 4,672,299 4,672,299
- 1,783,005 1,783,005
- 425,709 425,709
- 1,619,487 1,619,487
- 434,951 434,951
- 119,459 119,459
- 9,054,910 9,054,910

(72,931,510) 9,054,910 (63,876,600)

19,635,884 - 19,635,884
12,701,511 - 12,701,511
31,310,487 - 31,310,487

5,081,257 - 5,081,257
6,749,345 - 6,749,345
2,082,845 - 2,082,845
1,041,157 - 1,041,157

27,830 - 27,830
62,495 - 62,495

153,254 - 153,254
17,903 - 17,903

6,742,997 - 6,742,997
(354,599) 354,599 -

85,252,366 354,599 85,606,965
12,320,856 9,409,509 21,730,365

584,689,071 241,710,947 826,400,018
$ 597,009,927 251,120,456 848,130,383

Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government
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 General Fund  Library  State Gas Tax 
 Capital 

Improvements 

Assets
Assets:

Cash and investments $ 101,249,053 570,419 3,820,911 18,576,599
Receivables:

Accounts 2,927,206 91,973 4,901 1,501
Accrued interest 691,608 - 17,426 74,401
Intergovernmental 8,481,046 175,782 2,153,759 16,088
Notes/loans 530,867 - - -

Interfund receivables 2,479,282 - - -
Inventories - supplies 619,538 - - -
Advances to other funds 1,166,952 - - -
Restricted cash and investments 18,222,316 - - -

Total assets $ 136,367,868 838,174 5,996,997 18,668,589

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
    and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 6,603,685 427,102 35,056 161,698
Due to other agencies 8,478 - - -
Interfund payables - - - -
Unearned revenue 2,543,253 3,989 - -
Advances from other funds - - - -

Total liabilities 9,155,416 431,091 35,056 161,698
Deferred inflows of resources:

Unavailable revenue - - 571,057 -
Total deferred inflows of resources - - 571,057 -
Fund balances:

Nonspendable 2,317,357 - - -
Restricted 18,222,316 407,083 5,390,884 17,856,795
Committed 37,881,913 - - -
Assigned 68,175,670 - - 650,096
Unassigned 615,196 - - -

Total fund balances 127,212,452 407,083 5,390,884 18,506,891

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
    and fund balances $ 136,367,868 838,174 5,996,997 18,668,589

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019
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 Thousand Oaks 
Housing 

Successor 

 Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

 Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

2,596,302 31,182,552 157,995,836

24,323 734,001 3,783,905
7,498,443 601,587 8,883,465

- 740,566 11,567,241
33,665,790 2,254,600 36,451,257

- - 2,479,282
- - 619,538
- - 1,166,952
- 3,186,423 21,408,739

43,784,858 38,699,729 244,356,215

- 5,293,421 12,520,962
- 254,600 263,078
- 989,282 989,282

33,665,790 2,212,213 38,425,245
- 1,166,952 1,166,952

33,665,790 9,916,468 53,365,519

7,485,394 575,271 8,631,722
7,485,394 575,271 8,631,722

- - 2,317,357
2,633,674 12,523,019 57,033,771

- 2,130,376 40,012,289
- 13,554,595 82,380,361
- - 615,196

2,633,674 28,207,990 182,358,974

43,784,858 38,699,729 244,356,215
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182,358,974$

461,187,969

expenditures and, therefore, are unavailable in the funds 8,633,600

12,622,401

7,307,793

(72,566,602)

(2,534,208)

597,009,927$

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2019
to the Statement of Net Position

Deferred inflows represent  an acquisition of net position that 
applies to a future period.

Deferred outflows represent a consumption of net position that 
applies to a future period.

Net position of governmental activities (page 24)

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in
governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to account for the
cost of providing liability, workers' compensation, and vision
insurance coverage on a citywide basis. The assets and liabilities
of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net position.

Long-term liabilities, including pension liabilities, OPEB,
compensated absences, bonds payable, and interest payable, are
not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets, prepaid insurance and unavailable
revenue, are not available to pay for current-period expenditures 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position (page 24) are different because:

Total fund balances - total governmental funds (page 28)
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 General Fund  Library  State Gas Tax 
 Capital 

Improvements 

Revenues:
Taxes $ 66,689,794 7,336,990 1,000,000 -
Licenses and permits 6,490,525 - - -
Fines and forfeitures 345,543 114,854 - -
Use of money and property 7,421,360 14,718 72,781 352,904
Charges for current services 6,457,792 89,025 - 706,831
Intergovernmental revenue 863,024 7,289 6,659,723 -
Other 1,024,286 259,278 21,705 80,392

Total revenues 89,292,324 7,822,154 7,754,209 1,140,127

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 18,728,427 - - -
Public safety 30,752,823 - - -
Transportation 10,473,184 - 3,958,573 1,007,165
Community development 9,664,252 - - -
Culture and leisure 2,246,422 7,463,514 - -

Debt service:
Principal - - - -
Interest - - - -

Capital outlay 1,510,112 - - 8,752,462
Total expenditures 73,375,220 7,463,514 3,958,573 9,759,627

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
    expenditures 15,917,104 358,640 3,795,636 (8,619,500)

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in (note 5) 1,973,704 - 26,056 5,264,017
Transfers out (note 5) (6,780,505) - (1,057,960) (864,852)
Proceeds from sale of property 24,712 - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) (4,782,089) - (1,031,904) 4,399,165

Net change in fund balance 11,135,015 358,640 2,763,732 (4,220,335)

Fund balance - beginning 116,077,437 48,443 2,627,152 22,727,226

Fund balance - ending $ 127,212,452 407,083 5,390,884 18,506,891

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Year ended June 30, 2019
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 Thousand Oaks 
Housing 

Successor 

 Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

 Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

- 2,528,537 77,555,321
- - 6,490,525
- 540,377 1,000,774

361,868 501,087 8,724,718
- 5,300,242 12,553,890
- 1,369,662 8,899,698

15,720 1,216,601 2,617,982
377,588 11,456,506 117,842,908

- 9,784 18,738,211
- 1,390,222 32,143,045
- 7,608,169 23,047,091

137,413 535,089 10,336,754
- 44,939 9,754,875

- 650,000 650,000
- 505,812 505,812
- 50,401 10,312,975

137,413 10,794,416 105,488,763

240,175 662,090 12,354,145

- 1,751,909 9,015,686
- (666,968) (9,370,285)
- - 24,712
- 1,084,941 (329,887)

240,175 1,747,031 12,024,258

2,393,499 26,460,959 170,334,716

2,633,674 28,207,990 182,358,974
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12,024,258$    

(909,600)          

129,868           

618,121           

645,751           

(530,496)          

342,954           

12,320,856$    

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Change in net position of governmental activities (page 26)

The issuance of long-term debt (i.e., bonds, loans payable) provides
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums and
similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. The amount is the
net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and
related items.

Some expenses (i.e., long and short-term compensated absences and
insurance) reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures 
in governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to account for the cost of
providing general liability, workers' compensation, and vision insurance
coverage on a City-wide basis. The net revenue of certain activities of
internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital
assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to increase/(decrease) net
position.

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays were exceeded by depreciation in the
current period.

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 31)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page 26)
are different because:

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2019
to the Statement of Activities 
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 Original Budget  Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative) 

Revenues:
Taxes $ 64,571,300 64,571,300 66,689,794 2,118,494
Licenses and permits 6,297,255 6,297,255 6,490,525 193,270
Fines and forfeitures 334,500 334,500 345,543 11,043
Use of money and property 2,127,200 2,127,200 7,421,360 5,294,160
Charges for current services 6,704,000 6,704,000 6,457,792 (246,208)
Intergovernmental revenue 483,150 866,150 863,024 (3,126)
Other 452,350 578,050 1,024,286 446,236

Total revenues 80,969,755 81,478,455 89,292,324 7,813,869

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 20,213,208 23,037,859 18,728,427 4,309,432
Public safety 32,149,046 32,262,496 30,752,823 1,509,673
Transportation 12,337,182 13,664,007 10,473,184 3,190,823
Community development 10,468,133 12,487,942 9,664,252 2,823,690
Culture and leisure 1,877,070 2,815,136 2,246,422 568,714

Capital outlay 270,000 16,705,147 1,510,112 15,195,035
Total expenditures 77,314,639 100,972,587 73,375,220 27,597,367

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
    (under) expenditures 3,655,116 (19,494,132) 15,917,104 35,411,236

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in (note 5) 1,883,200 1,883,200 1,973,704 90,504
Transfers out (note 5) (8,846,106) (8,846,106) (6,780,505) 2,065,601
Proceeds from sale of property 60,000 60,000 24,712 (35,288)

Total other financing sources (uses) (6,902,906) (6,902,906) (4,782,089) 2,120,817

Net change in fund balance (3,247,790) (26,397,038) 11,135,015 37,532,053

Fund balance - beginning 116,077,437 116,077,437 116,077,437 -

Fund balance - ending $ 112,829,647 89,680,399 127,212,452 37,532,053

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

General Fund
Year ended June 30, 2019
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 Original Budget  Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative) 

Revenues:
Taxes $ 6,957,800 6,957,800 7,336,990 379,190
Fines and forfeitures 157,000 157,000 114,854 (42,146)
Use of money and property 14,501 14,501 14,718 217
Charges for current services 96,200 96,200 89,025 (7,175)
Intergovernmental revenue - - 7,289 7,289
Other 50,500 50,500 259,278 208,778

Total revenues 7,276,001 7,276,001 7,822,154 546,153

Expenditures:
Current:

Culture and leisure 8,658,024 8,786,273 7,463,514 1,322,759
Capital outlay 275,000 350,000 - 350,000

Total expenditures 8,933,024 9,136,273 7,463,514 1,672,759

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
    (under) expenditures (1,657,023) (1,860,272) 358,640 2,218,912

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in (note 5) 1,657,023 1,657,023 - (1,657,023)

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,657,023 1,657,023 - (1,657,023)

Net change in fund balance - (203,249) 358,640 561,889

Fund balance - beginning 48,443 48,443 48,443 -

Fund balance - ending $ 48,443 (154,806) 407,083 561,889

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Library Special Revenue Governmental Fund
Year ended June 30, 2019
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 Original Budget  Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative) 

Revenues:
Taxes $ - - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Use of money and property 32,000 32,000 72,781 40,781
Intergovernmental revenue 5,376,800 5,376,800 6,659,723 1,282,923
Other - - 21,705 21,705

Total revenues 5,408,800 5,408,800 7,754,209 2,345,409

Expenditures:
Current:

Transportation 2,668,000 9,532,169 3,958,573 5,573,596
Capital outlay 220,000 2,541,824 - 2,541,824

Total expenditures 2,888,000 12,073,993 3,958,573 8,115,420

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
    (under) expenditures 2,520,800 (6,665,193) 3,795,636 10,460,829

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in (note 5) - - 26,056 26,056
Transfers out (note 5) (1,027,000) (1,027,000) (1,057,960) (30,960)

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,027,000) (1,027,000) (1,031,904) (4,904)

Net change in fund balance 1,493,800 (7,692,193) 2,763,732 10,455,925

Fund balance - beginning 2,627,152 2,627,152 2,627,152 -

Fund balance - ending $ 4,120,952 (5,065,041) 5,390,884 10,455,925

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

State Gas Tax Fund
Year ended June 30, 2019
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 Original Budget  Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative) 

Revenues:
Use of money and property $ 124,000 124,000 361,868 237,868
Other 10,000 10,000 15,720 5,720

Total revenues 134,000 134,000 377,588 243,588

Expenditures:
Current:

Community development 264,457 275,887 137,413 138,474
Total expenditures 264,457 275,887 137,413 138,474

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
    (under) expenditures (130,457) (141,887) 240,175 382,062

Net change in fund balance (130,457) (141,887) 240,175 382,062

Fund balance - beginning 2,393,499 2,393,499 2,393,499 -

Fund balance - ending $ 2,263,042 2,251,612 2,633,674 382,062

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
 Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Thousand Oaks Housing Successor Fund
Year ended June 30, 2019
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 Water Utility 
 Wastewater 

Utility  Golf Course Transportation 

Assets:
Current assets:

Cash and investments $ 46,119,679 48,605,869 591,575 4,534,215
Receivables:

Accounts 4,167,472 3,185,206 357,421 559,453
Accrued interest 243,822 258,422 - 25,921
Intergovernmental - 1,141 - 2,055,860
Notes/loans - 375,000 - -

Inventories - supplies 206,354 221,039 81,042 -
Prepaid items - - 106,257 -

Total current assets 50,737,327 52,646,677 1,136,295 7,175,449
Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and investments 1,903,349 3,191,689 - 275,694
Capital assets:

Land 2,406,628 1,463,180 1,217,610 -
Intangibles, non-depreciable 45,473 88,065 - -
Buildings and improvements 65,605,629 217,363,518 12,838,959 2,883,445
Equipment 2,105,339 3,955,153 1,572,282 6,291,076
Intangibles, depreciable 490,418 - - 30,906
Construction in progress 1,704,696 273,832 109,199 262,365
Less accumulated depreciation (35,695,646) (106,516,867) (7,477,085) (3,576,668)

Total noncurrent assets 38,565,886 119,818,570 8,260,965 6,166,818
Total assets $ 89,303,213 172,465,247 9,397,260 13,342,267

Deferred outflow of resources:
Deferred pension items 1,209,172 2,134,223 - 197,547
Deferred OPEB items 220,293 374,775 - 40,363

Total deferred outflow of resources 1,429,465 2,508,998 - 237,910

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 2,096,336 1,401,454 278,919 982,747
Accrued interest - 102,861 - -
Claims payable - - - -
Due to other agencies - - 25,664 -
Interfund payables - - 1,490,000 -
Unearned revenue - - 671,363 5,631,839
Deposits 681,893 825 - -
Compensated absences 221,003 399,439 - 40,261
Notes/loans payable - 1,829,407 - -
Capital lease payable - - 142,276 -

Total current liabilities 2,999,232 3,733,986 2,608,222 6,654,847
Noncurrent liabilities:

Claims payable - - - -
Compensated absences 375,216 617,301 - 37,280
Notes/loans payable - 5,789,957 - -
Capital lease payable - - 267,334 -
Net pension liability 5,530,974 9,759,356 - 901,144
Net OPEB liability 681,105 1,199,055 - 108,770

Total noncurrent liabilities 6,587,295 17,365,669 267,334 1,047,194
Total liabilities $ 9,586,527 21,099,655 2,875,556 7,702,041

Deferred inflow of resources:
Deferred pension items 240,394 424,241 - 39,223
Deferred OPEB items 36,354 61,541 - 5,286

Total deferred inflow of resources 276,748 485,782 - 44,509

Net position:
Net investments in capital assets 36,662,537 109,007,517 7,851,355 5,891,124
Unrestricted 44,206,866 44,381,291 (1,329,651) (57,497)

Total net position (deficit) $ 80,869,403 153,388,808 6,521,704 5,833,627

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Business-type Activities

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2019
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 Solid Waste 
Management  Theatres  Total 

 Govt. Activities - 
Internal Service 

Funds 

3,246,526 3,919,753 107,017,617 10,885,661

410,167 695,210 9,374,929 17,132
17,628 17,760 563,553 53,985

- - 2,057,001 -
- - 375,000 -
- - 508,435 -
- 98,944 205,201 425

3,674,321 4,731,667 120,101,736 10,957,203

265,090 - 5,635,822 -

746,754 - 5,834,172 -
- - 133,538 -

3,235,490 745,686 302,672,727 -
22,226 639,006 14,585,082 -

- - 521,324 -
- 155,244 2,505,336 -

(404,122) (940,325) (154,610,713) -
3,865,438 599,611 177,277,288 -
7,539,759 5,331,278 297,379,024 10,957,203

168,995 542,106 4,252,043 -
27,600 95,094 758,125 -

196,595 637,200 5,010,168 -

221,463 343,734 5,324,653 26,162
- - 102,861 -
- - - 1,428,300
- - 25,664 -
- - 1,490,000 -

124,830 4,248,455 10,676,487 -
- 1,317 684,035 -

39,204 93,604 793,511 -
- - 1,829,407 -
- - 142,276 -

385,497 4,687,110 21,068,894 1,454,462

- - - 2,378,400
51,624 162,925 1,244,346 -

- - 5,789,957 -
- - 267,334 -

773,770 2,401,654 19,366,898 -
94,958 297,822 2,381,710 -

920,352 2,862,401 29,050,245 2,378,400
1,305,849 7,549,511 50,119,139 3,832,862

33,613 106,166 843,637 -
4,974 14,353 122,508 -

38,587 120,519 966,145 -

3,600,348 599,611 163,612,492 -
2,791,570 (2,301,163) 87,691,416 7,124,341
6,391,918 (1,701,552) 251,303,908 7,124,341

(183,452) Adjustments to reflect accumulated internal
251,120,456 services fund loss related to enterprise funds

net position of business-type activities (page 24)

Business-type Activities
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 Water Utility 
 Wastewater 

Utility  Golf Course  Transportation 

Operating revenues:
Sales of water and wastewater services $ 26,883,080 19,418,947 - -
Theatre rentals and fees - - - -
Charges for services and supplies - - - -
Bus and subsidized taxi fares - - - 268,675
Green fees, cart rentals and course memberships - - 6,099,078 -
Recycling fees - - - -
Fees for service 545,756 1,072,966 - 1,284,042
Other 82,497 446,647 541,569 248,953

Total operating revenues 27,511,333 20,938,560 6,640,647 1,801,670

Operating expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits 4,619,491 7,363,280 - 1,190,752
Contract services 1,945,901 4,004,398 5,664,186 4,241,984
Utilities 431,990 1,013,133 - 42,022
Purchase of water 14,710,130 - - -
Materials and supplies 962,911 2,628,984 1,588 1,245,771
Claims expenses - - - -
Administrative expenses 31,486 234,210 - 231,432
Depreciation 1,985,965 5,980,810 519,396 593,288

Total operating expenses 24,687,874 21,224,815 6,185,170 7,545,249

Operating income (loss) 2,823,459 (286,255) 455,477 (5,743,579)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 1,793,826 2,074,081 (10,638) 134,323
Interest expense - (120,389) (19,130) -
Donations - - - -
Rental of facilities 31,436 63,600 - 46,759
Federal assistance - - - 2,433,982
State assistance - - - 4,747,355

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,825,262 2,017,292 (29,768) 7,362,419

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 4,648,721 1,731,037 425,709 1,618,840

Transfers in - - - 415,765

Transfers out - - - (61,166)

Change in net position 4,648,721 1,731,037 425,709 1,973,439

Total net position - beginning 76,220,682 151,657,771 6,095,995 3,860,188

Total net position - ending $ 80,869,403 153,388,808 6,521,704 5,833,627

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Business-type Activities

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes In Net Position

Proprietary Funds
Year ended June 30, 2019

3939



Page 2 of 2

 Solid Waste 
Management  Theatres  Total 

 Govt. Activities - 
Internal Service 

Funds 

- - 46,302,027 -
- 3,476,868 3,476,868 -
- - - 983,941
- - 268,675 -
- - 6,099,078 -

1,451,094 - 1,451,094 -
- - 2,902,764 -

144,437 725,009 2,189,112 -
1,595,531 4,201,877 62,689,618 983,941

390,690 2,350,663 15,914,876 -
665,419 1,500,799 18,022,687 -
15,706 311,874 1,814,725 -

- - 14,710,130 -
130,603 25,411 4,995,268 -

- - - 753,535
29,076 453,843 980,047 -
65,520 74,632 9,219,611 -

1,297,014 4,717,222 65,657,344 753,535

298,517 (515,345) (2,967,726) 230,406

135,858 120,114 4,247,564 202,811
- - (139,519) -
- 501,196 501,196 -
- - 141,795 -
- - 2,433,982 -
- - 4,747,355 -

135,858 621,310 11,932,373 202,811

434,375 105,965 8,964,647 433,217

- - 415,765 -

- - (61,166) -

434,375 105,965 9,319,246 433,217

5,957,543 (1,807,517) 6,691,124

6,391,918 (1,701,552) 7,124,341
90,263 Adjustment to reflect internal service fund profit

9,409,509 related to enterprise fund changes in net position
of business-type activities (page 26)

Business-type Activities
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 Water Utility 
 Wastewater 

Utility  Golf Course  Transportation 

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 27,805,689 20,576,549 6,323,236 (1,084,562)
Cash payments for goods and services (17,558,963) (7,177,979) (5,850,323) (4,945,118)
Cash payments to employees (4,612,640) (7,289,548) - (1,175,661)

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 5,634,086 6,109,022 472,913 (7,205,341)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Property taxes and state tax subventions received - - - 4,747,355
Federal assistance - - - 2,433,982
Donations - - - -
Transfers in - - - 415,765
Transfers out - - - (61,166)

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities - - - 7,535,936

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Payments for capital acquisitions (3,158,358) (2,440,704) (126,481) (2,533,171)
Principal repayments - (4,765,342) - -
Capital lease obligation repayments - - (131,083) -
Interest paid - (120,389) (19,130) -

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities (3,158,358) (7,326,435) (276,694) (2,533,171)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received (paid) 1,755,915 2,050,215 (10,638) 127,320
Rental payments received 31,436 63,600 - 46,759

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 1,787,351 2,113,815 (10,638) 174,079

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,263,079 896,402 185,581 (2,028,497)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 43,759,949 50,901,156 405,994 6,838,406

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 48,023,028 51,797,558 591,575 4,809,909

Cash and investments $ 46,119,679 48,605,869 591,575 4,534,215
Restricted cash and investments 1,903,349 3,191,689 - 275,694

Total cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 48,023,028 51,797,558 591,575 4,809,909

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $ 2,823,459 (286,255) 455,477 (5,743,579)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income/(loss) to net
    cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 1,985,965 5,980,810 519,396 593,288
(Increase) decrease in accounts/notes receivable 306,709 (364,723) (342,299) (138,339)
(Increase) decrease in due from other governments - 2,387 - (1,481,975)
(Increase) decrease in inventories 13,335 (82,205) (16,349) -
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses - - 39,917 -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payables 7,680 621,518 64,891 268,920
(Decrease) in accrued liabilities - (45,170) - -
(Decrease) in due to other agencies - - (8,008) -
(Decrease) in due to other funds - - (265,000) -
Increase in compensated absences 6,851 73,732 - 15,091
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 450,095 121,212 - 510,019
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB liability 52,345 87,391 - 37,152
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue and deposits (12,353) 325 24,888 (1,265,918)
(Decrease) in claims payable - - - -

Total adjustments 2,810,627 6,395,277 17,436 (1,461,762)

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 5,634,086 6,109,022 472,913 (7,205,341)

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Capital assets acquired through capital leases - - 195,131 -

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds

Year ended June 30, 2019

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at end of year to the Statement of Net Position:

Business-type Activities
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 Solid Waste 
Management  Theatres  Total 

 Govt. Activities -
Internal Service 

Funds 

1,529,119 5,121,008 60,271,039 966,809
(893,947) (2,069,894) (38,496,224) (962,614)
(385,068) (2,309,677) (15,772,594) -
250,104 741,437 6,002,221 4,195

- - 4,747,355 -
- - 2,433,982 -
- 501,196 501,196 -
- - 415,765 -
- - (61,166) -
- 501,196 8,037,132 -

- (154,813) (8,413,527) -
- - (4,765,342) -
- - (131,083) -
- - (139,519) -
- (154,813) (13,449,471) -

133,330 114,348 4,170,490 197,136
- - 141,795 -

133,330 114,348 4,312,285 197,136

383,434 1,202,168 4,902,167 201,331

3,128,182 2,717,585 107,751,272 10,684,330

3,511,616 3,919,753 112,653,439 10,885,661

3,246,526 3,919,753 107,017,617 10,885,661

265,090 - 5,635,822 -

3,511,616 3,919,753 112,653,439 10,885,661

298,517 (515,345) (2,967,726) 230,406

65,520 74,632 9,219,611 -
(91,247) (267,607) (897,506) (17,132)

- - (1,479,588) -
- - (85,219) -
- (22,945) 16,972 -

98,566 83,711 1,145,286 (33,680)
- - (45,170) -
- - (8,008) -
- - (265,000) -

5,622 40,986 142,282 -
(149,016) 115,269 1,047,579 -

(2,693) 45,998 220,193 -
24,835 1,186,738 (41,485) -

- - - (175,399)
(48,413) 1,256,782 8,969,947 (226,211)

250,104 741,437 6,002,221 4,195

- - - -

Business-type Activities
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Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements 
 
 



 Agency Funds 

 Thousand Oaks 
Redevelopment 

Successor Agency 
 Defined Benefits 

Trust Fund 

Assets:
Current assets:

Cash and investments $ 7,955,414 3,595,888 -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 675,711
Investments:

Fixed income - - 1,546,262
Stocks - - 1,637,484
Real estate - - 78,924

Receivables:
Accounts 87,707 - -
Accrued interest 11,253 - -

Total current assets 8,054,374 3,595,888 3,938,381
Total assets $ 8,054,374 3,595,888 3,938,381

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 37,619 250 -
Accrued liabilities - 164,652 593,746
Deposits 8,016,755 - -
Notes/loans payable - 6,448,000 -

Total current liabilities 8,054,374 6,612,902 593,746
Noncurrent liabilities:

Notes/loans payable, less current portion - 11,939,000 -
Total liabilities $ 8,054,374 18,551,902 593,746

Net position:
Net pension restricted for pensions - 3,344,635
Held in trust for other purposes (14,956,014) -

Total net position (deficit) $ (14,956,014) 3,344,635

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2019
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 Thousand Oaks 
Redevelopment 

Successor Agency 
 Defined Benefits 

Trust Fund 

Additions:
Property taxes $ 7,055,614 -
Contributions:

Employer - 50,000
Employee - 73,360

Investment income:
Investment earnings 16,869 -
Net increase in fair value of investments - 199,350

Total Additions 7,072,483 322,710

Deductions:
Program expenses 437,968 -
Service benefits - 235,561
Refunds of member contributions - 110,832
Administrative expenses 250,000 29,431
Fiscal agency expenses 3,048 -

Total Deductions 691,016 375,824

Changes in net position 6,381,467 (53,114)

Net position - beginning (21,337,481) 3,397,749

Net position - ending $ (14,956,014) 3,344,635

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Statement of Changes in Net Position - Fiduciary Funds

Year ended June 30, 2019
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
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Certain 
Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
(Continued)

47



Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
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Debt Service
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
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Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain 
Investments and External Investment Pools
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 Deferred charges on refunding bonds are reported in the government-wide statement 
of net position and the proprietary statement of net position. Deferred charges on 
refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its 
reacquisition price. This amount is deferred  and amortized over the shorter of the life 
of the refunded or refunding debt. 

 
 Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and other post-employment 

benefits (OPEB) are reported in the government-wide statement of net position and 
the proprietary funds statement of net position.  These amounts arise from 
contributions to the plan made after the actuarial measurement date, as well as 
changes in actuarial assumptions, differences between actual and projected 
experiences, and differences between actual and expected earnings on plan 
investments. These amounts are amortized and reported as a component in pension 
and OPEB expense in future fiscal years. 

 
In addition to liabilities, the balance sheet or statement of net position reports a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a 
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that 
time. The City reports the following items related to deferred inflows:  
 

 Unavailable revenue arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Accordingly, unavailable revenue is reported only in the governmental funds balance 
sheet. The governmental funds reported unavailable revenue from two sources: sales 
tax and deferred loans. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of 
resources in the period the amounts become available.  
 

 Deferred inflows of resources related to pension and OPEB are reported in the 
government-wide statement of net position and the proprietary funds statement of net 
position. These balances arise from changes in actuarial assumptions, differences 
between actual and projected experiences, and differences between actual and 
expected earnings on plan investments.  These amounts are being amortized over a 
five year period on a straight line basis. 

 
(p) Net Pension Liability 
 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the CalPERS agent multiple-employer defined benefit plan 
(Plan), and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office.  For 
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
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fund balance - total governmental funds
net position - governmental activities  (allow for rounding)

fund balance - total governmental funds
net position - governmental activities (allow for rounding)

fund balance - total governmental funds
net position - governmental activities  (allow for rounding)
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Beginning balance of deferred inflows of resources - pension and OPEB items (3,292,407)$ 
Aggregate changes in pension related deferred inflows 785,717        
Aggregate changes in OPEB related deferred inflows (27,518)         
Net adjustment to decrease fund balance - total governmental funds  to arrive at 
net position - governmental activities  (allow for rounding) (2,534,208)$ 

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide 
statement of activities 
 
The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 
and changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statement of activities.  One element of the reconciliation explains that “governmental funds 
report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of activities the cost of 
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation 
expense.”  This is the amount by which depreciation expense exceeded capital outlay in the 
current period. The details of this ($909,600) difference are as follows: 
 
Capital outlay 14,956,998$   
Depreciation expense (15,866,598)    
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balance - total 
governmental funds  to arrive at changes in net position of governmental 
activities  (allow for rounding) (909,600)$       

 
Another element of the reconciliation states that “the net effect of various miscellaneous 
transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to increase net 
position.”  The details of this $129,868 difference are as follows: 
 
Land donations 17,903$          
Disposals of capital assets decrease net position in the statement of 
activities, but do not appear in the governmental funds because they are not 
financial resources 111,965          
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balance - total 
governmental funds  to arrive at changes in net position of governmental 
activities  (allow for rounding) 129,868$        
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net changes in fund balance - total 
governmental funds changes in net position of governmental 
activities  (allow for rounding)
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The City has the following fair value measurements for its investments as of June 30, 2019: 
 

Investment by Fair Value Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

U.S. Agencies - Fixed Coupons 149,776,272$     -$                    149,776,272$    -$                    

Supranationals 20,005,700         -                      20,005,700        -                      

Municipal Bonds 43,123,285         -                      43,123,285        -                      

U.S.Treasuries 21,363,790         21,363,790     -                        -                      

Total 234,269,047$     21,363,790$   212,905,257$    -$                    

Investments Measured at Net Asset Value (NAV) or not subject to fair value hierarchy:

Ventura County Treasury Pool 5,244,545$         

LAIF 36,439,219         

Held by Fiscal Agent:

  Money Market Funds 3,424,847           

  LAIF 7,221,718           

Total 52,330,329$       

 
(3) LOANS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE 
 
 Governmental Funds 
 
 The former Redevelopment Agency engaged in projects designed to improve, construct, 

and preserve low and moderate income housing units.  Under these housing projects, notes 
and loans were provided under favorable terms to non-profit organizations or developers 
who agreed to comply with the former Redevelopment Agency’s terms.  As a result of the 
dissolution of the former Redevelopment Agency on February 1, 2012, the loans and notes 
were transferred to the Thousand Oaks Housing Successor Fund.  As of June 30, 2019, 
loans and notes receivable totaling $36,451,257 consists of $33,665,790 from the Thousand 
Oaks Housing Successor Fund, $2,254,600 from other governmental funds, and $530,867 
from the General Fund are on the following page: 
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Capital assets governmental activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, are as follow: 
 

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2018 Additions Disposals June 30, 2019

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
   Land 132,891,808$   14,755$         -$                   132,906,563$   
   Intangibles 840,555            -                     -                     840,555            
   Construction in progress 8,611,995         1,525,113      6,259,582      3,877,526         
      Total 142,344,358     1,539,868      6,259,582      137,624,644     
Capital assets, being depreciated:
   Buildings and improvements 163,534,725   489,010       -                    164,023,735   
   Equipment 12,256,086       320,487         426,910         12,149,663       
   Intangibles 970,698            36,939           -                     1,007,637         
   Infrastructure 470,141,895     18,848,179    -                     488,990,074     
      Total 646,903,404     19,694,615    426,910         666,171,109     
Less accumulated depreciation for:
   Buildings and improvements 61,314,697     3,918,704    -                    65,233,401     
   Equipment * 8,949,174         813,671         538,875         9,223,970         
   Intangibles 828,063            50,864           -                     878,927            
   Infrastructure 256,188,127     11,083,359    -                     267,271,486     
      Total 327,280,061     15,866,598    538,875         342,607,784     
   Total, net depreciation 319,623,343     3,828,017      (111,965)        323,563,325     
Total net capital assets 461,967,701$  5,367,885$   6,147,617$    461,187,969$  

*Equipment disposals are negative due to an adjustment to recognize the retirement of a capital asset.

 
(b) Business-type Activities: 

 
Water Fund construction in progress addition of $0.8 million is primarily due to the Conejo 
Valley groundwater utilization.  Buildings and improvements additions of $2.5 million is 
primarily due to $1.8 million for Lang Ranch reservoir improvements, $0.4 million for meter 
replacements, and $0.2 million for pavement overlay. 
 
Wastewater Fund buildings and improvements additions of $3.2 million is primarily due to 
$1.2 million for wastewater main extension, $0.8 million for the chlorine contact chamber, 
$0.8 million for pipe relining, and $0.4 million for pavement overlay. 
 
Golf Course Fund equipment additions of $0.2 million is primarily due to a new GPS system 
lease and a new professional sprayer/roller.  Equipment disposals of $0.5 million is primarily 
due to the disposal of $0.3 million Yamaha 95 carts and $0.1 million Luber Bros Jacobsen 
equipment package. 
 
Transportation Fund equipment additions of $2.4 million is primarily due to the purchase of 
four new compressed natural gas buses. 
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Balance at Balance at
Transportation Fund: June 30, 2018 Additions Disposals June 30, 2019
   Capital assets, not being depreciated:
   Construction in progress 97,603$                173,180$              8,418$                  262,365$              
      Total 97,603                  173,180                8,418                    262,365                
   Capital assets, being depreciated:
   Buildings and improvements 2,875,027             8,418                    -                            2,883,445             
   Equipment 3,931,085             2,359,991             -                            6,291,076             
   Intangibles 30,906                  -                            -                            30,906                  
      Total 6,837,018             2,368,409             -                            9,205,427             
   Less accumulated depreciation for:
   Buildings and improvements 530,891                136,492                -                            667,383                
   Equipment 2,442,702             453,705                -                            2,896,407             
   Intangibles 9,787                    3,091                    -                            12,878                  
      Total 2,983,380             593,288                -                            3,576,668             
   Total, net depreciation 3,853,638             1,775,121             -                            5,628,759             
Transportation Fund net capital assets 3,951,241$           1,948,301$           8,418$                  5,891,124$           

 
Solid Waste Management Fund:
   Capital assets, not being depreciated:
   Land 746,754$               -$                          -$                          746,754$              
      Total 746,754                  -                            -                            746,754                 
   Capital assets, being depreciated:
   Buildings and improvements 3,235,490              -                            -                            3,235,490             
   Equipment 22,226                    -                            -                            22,226                   
      Total 3,257,716              -                        -                            3,257,716             
   Less accumulated depreciation for:
   Buildings and improvements 321,011                  64,748                 -                            385,759                 
   Equipment 17,590                    772                       -                            18,363                   
      Total 338,601                  65,520                 -                            404,122                 
   Total, net depreciation 2,919,115              (65,520)                -                            2,853,595             
Solid Waste Fund net capital assets 3,665,869$            (65,520)$             -$                          3,600,349$           
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assumptions are included in the City’s current actuarial valuation, and will impact the 
required contribution for fiscal year 2019-20. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for 
each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-
term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash 
flows. Such cash flows were developed assuming that both members and employers will 
make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using 
historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns 
were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a 
building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-
term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return 
was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present 
value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term 
returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate 
calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 
 
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of 
return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the 
discount rate and asset allocation. The target allocation shown was adopted by the Board in 
December 2017.  These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 

Market Value Policy Target Allocation
Asset Class ($ Billion) Allocation at 6/30/2018

Public Equity 156.2$    50.00% 48.26%
Private Equity 25.9       8.00% 8.00%
Global Fixed Income 62.9       28.00% 19.43%
Liquidity 15.5       1.00% 4.79%
Real Assets 36.3       13.00% 11.21%
Inflation Sensitive Assets 25.3       0.00% 7.82%
Other 1.6         0.00% 0.49%

323.7$    100.00% 100.00%
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 
 

Special Revenue Funds 
 
Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for particular purposes. 
 
Landscape and Lighting Districts Fund - The various Thousand Oaks Maintenance 
Districts and the Thousand Oaks Citywide Lighting District were established to provide 
landscape/open space maintenance and street lighting throughout the City of Thousand 
Oaks.  Property taxes and service fees are levied specifically for these purposes. 
 
Traffic and Bicycle Safety Fund - Traffic and court fines as well as pedestrian facilities 
grant funding (SB 821, Art. 3) are collected in this fund.   
 
Community Facilities Districts Fund - The Districts are authorized under the Mello-Roos 
Community Facilities Act of 1982 to levy special taxes upon the land of the Districts and 
to issue bonds secured by special taxes.  The proceeds, held by a trustee, are to be 
used to develop public improvements within each District. The fund is used to account 
for administration and technical services to the district, as well as to collect the 
assessments to pay the debt.  Since the debt is not a liability of the City, any capital 
improvements are not recorded as a City expenditure.  At June 30, 2015, there are two 
districts, Community Facilities District No. 1994-1 (Marketplace Public Pedestrian, 
Traffic Circulation and Parking Facilities) and Community Facilities District No. 1997-1 
(Promenade Public Parking Facilities). 
 
Federal Asset Seizure Fund - As required by the U.S. Department of Justice, this fund 
was established in order to account for the receipt and expenditure of federal asset 
seizure money. 
 
HOME and Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Fund - As required by grant 
regulations, this fund was established in order to account for the receipt and 
expenditure of HOME Disaster Relief Funds from the California Department of Housing 
and Community Development Division of Community Affairs and CDBG funds allocated 
to the City by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). 
 
County Flood Control Benefit Assessment Fund - Ventura County Flood Control District 
determines property tax assessments countywide for flood control purposes and 
apportions the assessments to each city to be used exclusively for flood control 
purposes. 

 
Housing Trust Fund - This fund was established for the creation, preservation, and 
rehabilitation of affordable housing for very-low, low, and moderate income households 
within the City.  Revenues include fees collected from residential developments in lieu 
of constructing affordable housing units, linkage fees from applicable non-residential 
developments, gifts, and grants.  
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, continued 
 

Special Revenue Funds (continued) 
 

East County Transit Alliance Fund - This fund was established to account for the fiscal 
activities of the East County Transit Alliance, formed by the cities of Thousand Oaks, 
Camarillo, Moorpark, and Simi Valley, and the County of Ventura to improve delivery of 
transit services in the East County. 

 
Debt Service Funds 

 
Thousand Oaks Public Financing Authority Fund - This fund was established to account 
for the accumulation of resources and payment of principal and interest of the Thousand 
Oaks Public Financing Authority. 
 

Capital Projects Funds 
 
Fixed Asset Replacement Fund - This fund is used to account for the City’s equipment 
replacement program.  Amounts billed to City departments are recorded as revenues 
and the expenditures for replacement of equipment are recorded in this fund. 
 
Community Recreation and Open Space Endowment Fund - This fund includes 
revenues from bedroom taxes collected from developers, an annual 10 percent transfer 
of unreserved/undesignated General Fund balance, donations from the Adopt-an-Oak 
Tree program, and $2 per round for non-resident golfers from the Golf Course Fund.  
Revenues are used for the development of parks and purchase of open space 
throughout the City of Thousand Oaks. 
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Page 1 of 3

Landscape and 
Lighting 
Districts

Traffic and 
Bicycle Safety

Community 
Facilities 
Districts

Federal Asset 
Seizure

HOME and 
Community 

Development 
Block Grant

Assets
Assets:

Cash and investments $ 9,706,364 184,222 1,859,155 271,612 127,366
Receivables:

Accounts 75,253 - - 537 -
Accrued interest 50,782 996 8,004 1,498 394,238
Intergovernmental 173,123 133,212 - - 130,570
Notes/loans - - - - 1,254,600

Restricted cash and investments - - 2,019,468 - -

Total assets $ 10,005,522 318,430 3,886,627 273,647 1,906,774

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
    Resources and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 1,019,158 8,323 3,886,627 79,713 104,902
Due to other agencies - - - - 254,600
Interfund payables - 133,212 - - 25,668
Unearned revenue - - - 199,423 1,000,000
Advances from other funds - - - - -

Total liabilities 1,019,158 141,535 3,886,627 279,136 1,385,170
Deferred inflows of resources:

Unavailable revenue - - - - 394,238
Total deferred inflows of resources - - - - 394,238
Fund balances:

Restricted 8,986,364 176,895 - (5,489) 127,366
Committed - - - - -
Assigned - - - - -

Total fund balances 8,986,364 176,895 - (5,489) 127,366

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
    resources and fund balances $ 10,005,522 318,430 3,886,627 273,647 1,906,774

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

Special Revenue Funds
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Page 2 of 3
Debt Service 

Funds

County Flood 
Control Benefit 
Assessment Housing Trust

East County 
Transit Alliance Total

Thousand 
Oaks Public 
Financing 
Authority

88 3,213,827 115,054 15,477,688 8,350

325,082 - 333,129 734,001 -
- 135,482 - 591,000 -

166,263 - 137,398 740,566 -
- 1,000,000 - 2,254,600 -
- - - 2,019,468 1,166,955

491,433 4,349,309 585,581 21,817,323 1,175,305

22,671 - 149,897 5,271,291 -
- - - 254,600 -

468,674 - 361,728 989,282 -
- 1,000,000 12,790 2,212,213 -
- - - - 1,166,952

491,345 1,000,000 524,415 8,727,386 1,166,952

- 119,867 61,166 575,271 -
- 119,867 61,166 575,271 -

88 3,229,442 - 12,514,666 8,353
- - - - -
- - - - -

88 3,229,442 - 12,514,666 8,353

491,433 4,349,309 585,581 21,817,323 1,175,305

121121



Page 3 of 3

Fixed Asset 
Replacement

Community 
Recreation and 

Open Space 
Endowment Fund Total

Total Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds

 Assets 
 Assets: 

 Cash and investments $ 13,572,071 2,124,443 15,696,514 31,182,552
 Receivables: 

 Accounts - - - 734,001
 Accrued interest - 10,587 10,587 601,587
 Intergovernmental - - - 740,566
 Notes/loans - - - 2,254,600

 Restricted cash and investments - - - 3,186,423

 Total assets $ 13,572,071 2,135,030 15,707,101 38,699,729

 Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
    Resources and Fund Balances 
 Liabilities: 

 Accounts payable $ 17,476 4,654 22,130 5,293,421
 Due to other agencies - - - 254,600
 Interfund payables - - - 989,282
 Unearned revenue - - - 2,212,213
 Advances from other funds - - - 1,166,952

 Total liabilities 17,476 4,654 22,130 9,916,468
 Deferred inflows of resources: 

 Unavailable revenue - - - 575,271
 Total deferred inflows of resources - - - 575,271
 Fund balances: 

 Restricted  - - - 12,523,019
 Committed  - 2,130,376 2,130,376 2,130,376
 Assigned  13,554,595 - 13,554,595 13,554,595

 Total fund balances  13,554,595 2,130,376 15,684,971 28,207,990

 Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
    resources and fund balances $ 13,572,071 2,135,030 15,707,101 38,699,729

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

Capital Projects Funds
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Page 1 of 3

Landscape and 
Lighting 
Districts

Traffic and 
Bicycle Safety

Community 
Facilities 
Districts

Federal Asset 
Seizure

HOME and 
Community 

Development 
Block Grant

Revenues:
Taxes $ 2,520,687 - - - -
Fines and forfeitures - 540,377 - - -
Use of money and property 179,670 13,727 - 5,791 35,669
Charges for current services 4,769,539 - - - -
Intergovernmental revenue - 5,980 - - 460,946
Other 81,388 - - - -

Total revenues 7,551,284 560,084 - 5,791 496,615

Expenditures:
Current:

General government - - - - -
Public safety 1,160,547 - - 196,063 -
Transportation 5,455,338 230,801 - - -
Community development 54,183 - - - 460,946
Culture and leisure - - - - -

Debt service:
Principal - - - - -
Interest - - - - -

Capital outlay - - - - -
Total expenditures 6,670,068 230,801 - 196,063 460,946

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
    (under) expenditures 881,216 329,283 - (190,272) 35,669

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in (note 5) 137,920 - - - -
Transfers out (note 5) - (508,305) - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) 137,920 (508,305) - - -

Net change in fund balance 1,019,136 (179,022) - (190,272) 35,669

Fund balance - beginning 7,967,228 355,917 - 184,783 91,697

Fund balance - ending $ 8,986,364 176,895 - (5,489) 127,366

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year ended June 30, 2019

Special Revenue Funds
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Page 2 of 3
Debt Service 

Funds

County Flood 
Control Benefit 
Assessment Housing Trust

East County 
Transit Alliance Total

Thousand 
Oaks Public 
Financing 
Authority

- - - 2,520,687 -
- - - 540,377 -
- 198,103 467 433,427 27,726

478,933 - 51,770 5,300,242 -
- - 902,736 1,369,662 -

770 - 47,060 129,218 -
479,703 198,103 1,002,033 10,293,613 27,726

- - - - -
- - - 1,356,610 -

801,047 - 897,496 7,384,682 -
- - - 515,129 -
- - - - -

- - - - 650,000
- - - - 505,812
- - - - -

801,047 - 897,496 9,256,421 1,155,812

(321,344) 198,103 104,537 1,037,192 (1,128,086)

321,432 - 61,166 520,518 1,131,391
- - (158,663) (666,968) -

321,432 - (97,497) (146,450) 1,131,391

88 198,103 7,040 890,742 3,305

- 3,031,339 (7,040) 11,623,924 5,048

88 3,229,442 - 12,514,666 8,353
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Page 3 of 3

Fixed Asset 
Replacement

Community 
Recreation and 

Open Space 
Endowment Fund Total

Total Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds

 Revenues: 
 Taxes $ - 7,850 7,850 2,528,537
 Fines and forfeitures - - - 540,377
 Use of money and property - 39,934 39,934 501,087
 Charges for current services - - - 5,300,242
 Intergovernmental revenue - - - 1,369,662
 Other 1,087,160 223 1,087,383 1,216,601

 Total revenues 1,087,160 48,007 1,135,167 11,456,506

 Expenditures: 
 Current: 

 General government 9,784 - 9,784 9,784
 Public safety 33,612 - 33,612 1,390,222
 Transportation 223,487 - 223,487 7,608,169
 Community development - 19,960 19,960 535,089
 Culture and leisure 44,939 - 44,939 44,939

 Debt service: 
 Principal - - - 650,000
 Interest - - - 505,812

 Capital outlay - 50,401 50,401 50,401
 Total expenditures 311,822 70,361 382,183 10,794,416

 Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
    (under) expenditures 775,338 (22,354) 752,984 662,090

 Other financing sources (uses): 
 Transfers in (note 5) - 100,000 100,000 1,751,909
 Transfers out (note 5) - - - (666,968)

 Total other financing sources (uses) - 100,000 100,000 1,084,941

 Net change in fund balance 775,338 77,646 852,984 1,747,031

 Fund balance - beginning 12,779,257 2,052,730 14,831,987 26,460,959

 Fund balance - ending $ 13,554,595 2,130,376 15,684,971 28,207,990

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year ended June 30, 2019

Capital Projects Funds
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 Original Budget  Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative) 

Revenues:
Taxes $ 2,239,100 2,239,100 2,520,687 281,587
Use of money and property 45,300 45,300 179,670 134,370
Charges for current services 4,298,400 4,298,400 4,769,539 471,139
Other 55,000 66,500 81,388 14,888

Total revenues 6,637,800 6,649,300 7,551,284 901,984

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety 1,255,083 1,260,839 1,160,547 100,292
Transportation 6,801,763 8,276,845 5,455,338 2,821,507
Community development 16,308 16,308 54,183 (37,875)

Capital outlay 400,000 545,000 - 545,000
Total expenditures 8,473,154 10,098,992 6,670,068 3,428,924

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
    (under) expenditures (1,835,354) (3,449,692) 881,216 4,330,908

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in (note 5) 180,000 180,000 137,920 (42,080)

Total other financing sources (uses) 180,000 180,000 137,920 (42,080)

Net change in fund balance (1,655,354) (3,269,692) 1,019,136 4,288,828

Fund balance - beginning 7,967,228 7,967,228 7,967,228 -

Fund balance - ending $ 6,311,874 4,697,536 8,986,364 4,288,828

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Landscape and Lighting Districts Special Revenue Governmental Fund
Year ended June 30, 2019
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 Original Budget  Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative) 

Revenues:
Fines and forfeitures $ 625,000 625,000 540,377 (84,623)
Use of money and property 5,000 5,000 13,727 8,727
Intergovernmental revenue 55,000 55,000 5,980 (49,020)

Total revenues 685,000 685,000 560,084 (124,916)

Expenditures:
Current:

Transportation 55,000 407,047 230,801 176,246
Total expenditures 55,000 407,047 230,801 176,246

Excess of revenues over expenditures 630,000 277,953 329,283 51,330

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (note 5) (571,000) (571,000) (508,305) 62,695

Total other financing sources (uses) (571,000) (571,000) (508,305) 62,695

Net change in fund balance 59,000 (293,047) (179,022) 114,025

Fund balance - beginning 355,917 355,917 355,917 -

Fund balance - ending $ 414,917 62,870 176,895 114,025

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Traffic and Bicycle Safety Special Revenue Governmental Fund
Year ended June 30, 2019
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 Original Budget  Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative) 

Revenues:
Use of money and property $ - - 35,669 35,669
Intergovernmental revenue 600,000 600,000 460,946 (139,054)

Total revenues 600,000 600,000 496,615 (103,385)

Expenditures:
Current:

Community development 600,000 1,028,827 460,946 567,881
Total expenditures 600,000 1,028,827 460,946 567,881

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
    (under) expenditures - (428,827) 35,669 464,496

Net change in fund balance - (428,827) 35,669 464,496

Fund balance - beginning 91,697 91,697 91,697 -

Fund balance - ending $ 91,697 (337,130) 127,366 464,496

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

HOME and Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Special Revenue Governmental Fund
Year ended June 30, 2019
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 Original Budget  Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative) 

Revenues:
Charges for current services $ 465,000 465,000 478,933 13,933
Other 4,000 4,000 770 (3,230)

Total revenues 469,000 469,000 479,703 10,703

Expenditures:
Current:

Transportation 1,041,183 1,098,458 801,047 297,411
Capital outlay 150,000 150,000 - 150,000

Total expenditures 1,191,183 1,248,458 801,047 447,411

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
    (under) expenditures (722,183) (779,458) (321,344) 458,114

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in (note 5) 722,183 722,183 321,432 (400,751)

Total other financing sources (uses) 722,183 722,183 321,432 (400,751)

Net change in fund balance - (57,275) 88 57,363

Fund balance - beginning - - - -

Fund balance - ending $ - (57,275) 88 57,363

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

County Flood Control Benefit Assessment Special Revenue Governmental Fund
Year ended June 30, 2019
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 Original Budget  Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative) 

Revenues:
Use of money and property $ 25,000 25,000 198,103 173,103

Total revenues 25,000 25,000 198,103 173,103

Expenditures:
Current:

Community development 12,000 12,000 - 12,000
Total expenditures 12,000 12,000 - 12,000

Excess of revenues over expenditures 13,000 13,000 198,103 185,103

Net change in fund balance 13,000 13,000 198,103 185,103

Fund balance - beginning 3,031,339 3,031,339 3,031,339 -

Fund balance - ending $ 3,044,339 3,044,339 3,229,442 185,103

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Housing Trust Special Revenue Governmental Fund
Year ended June 30, 2019
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 Original Budget  Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative) 

Revenues:
Use of money and property $ 250 250 467 217
Charges for current services 25,300 25,300 51,770 26,470
Intergovernmental revenue 740,000 965,000 902,736 (62,264)
Other - - 47,060 47,060

Total revenues 765,550 990,550 1,002,033 11,483

Expenditures:
Current:

Transportation 669,696 909,696 897,496 12,200
Capital outlay - 40,000 - 40,000

Total expenditures 669,696 949,696 897,496 52,200

Excess of revenues over expenditures 95,854 40,854 104,537 63,683

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in (note 5) - - 61,166 61,166
Transfers out (note 5) - - (158,663) (158,663)

Total other financing sources (uses) - - (97,497) (97,497)

Net change in fund balance 95,854 40,854 7,040 (33,814)

Fund balance - beginning (7,040) (7,040) (7,040) -

Fund balance - ending $ 88,814 33,814 - (33,814)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

East County Transit Alliance Governmental Fund
Year ended June 30, 2019
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 Original Budget  Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative) 

Revenues:
Use of money and property $ 235,000 235,000 352,904 117,904
Charges for current services 456,000 456,000 706,831 250,831
Other - 939,684 80,392 (859,292)

Total revenues 691,000 1,630,684 1,140,127 (490,557)

Expenditures:
Current:

Transportation 1,330,000 1,385,319 1,007,165 378,154
Community development - 1,417,280 - 1,417,280

Capital outlay 5,498,000 16,617,167 8,752,462 7,864,705
Total expenditures 6,828,000 19,419,766 9,759,627 9,660,139

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
    (under) expenditures (6,137,000) (17,789,082) (8,619,500) 9,169,582

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in (note 5) 5,215,000 5,215,000 5,264,017 49,017
Transfers out (note 5) (465,200) (815,200) (864,852) (49,652)

Total other financing sources (uses) 4,749,800 4,399,800 4,399,165 (635)

Net change in fund balance (1,387,200) (13,389,282) (4,220,335) 9,168,947

Fund balance - beginning 22,727,226 22,727,226 22,727,226 -

Fund balance - ending $ 21,340,026 9,337,944 18,506,891 9,168,947

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
 Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Capital Improvements Fund
Year ended June 30, 2019
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Liability Insurance Fund - This fund was established to account for the cost of providing 
general liability coverage on a Citywide basis.

Workers’ Compensation Fund - This fund was established to account for the cost of 
providing workers’ compensation coverage on a Citywide basis.

Vision Insurance Fund - This fund was established to account for the cost of providing 
vision coverage on a Citywide basis.
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 Liability 
Insurance 

 Workers' 
Compensation 

Insurance  Vision Insurance  Total 

Assets:
Current assets:

Cash and investments $ 4,347,289 6,475,400 62,972 10,885,661
Receivables:

Accounts - 15,023 2,109 17,132
Accrued interest 21,619 32,057 309 53,985

Prepaid items 425 - - 425
Total current assets 4,369,333 6,522,480 65,390 10,957,203

Total assets $ 4,369,333 6,522,480 65,390 10,957,203

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 9,194 12,786 4,182 26,162
Noncurrent liabilities:

Claims payable 1,566,400 2,240,300 - 3,806,700
Total liabilities $ 1,575,594 2,253,086 4,182 3,832,862

Net position:
Unrestricted 2,793,739 4,269,394 61,208 7,124,341

Total net position (deficit) $ 2,793,739 4,269,394 61,208 7,124,341

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Combining Statement of Net Position

Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2019
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 Liability 
Insurance 

 Workers' 
Compensation 

Insurance  Vision Insurance  Total 

Operating revenues:
Charges for services and supplies $ 466,730 467,595 49,616 983,941

Total operating revenues 466,730 467,595 49,616 983,941

Operating expenses:
Claims expenses 394,946 306,550 52,039 753,535

Total operating expenses 394,946 306,550 52,039 753,535

Operating income (loss) 71,784 161,045 (2,423) 230,406

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 82,092 119,515 1,204 202,811

Total nonoperating revenues 82,092 119,515 1,204 202,811

Income (loss) before contributions and
    transfers 153,876 280,560 (1,219) 433,217

Change in net position 153,876 280,560 (1,219) 433,217

Total net position - beginning 2,639,863 3,988,834 62,427 6,691,124

Total net position - ending $ 2,793,739 4,269,394 61,208 7,124,341

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes In Net Position

Internal Service Funds
Year ended June 30, 2019
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 Liability 
Insurance 

 Workers' 
Compensation 

Insurance  Vision Insurance  Total 

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 466,730 452,572 47,507 966,809
Cash payments for goods and services (514,494) (397,309) (50,811) (962,614)

Net cash provided by (used for) operating
    activities (47,764) 55,263 (3,304) 4,195

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received 79,961 115,979 1,196 197,136

Net cash provided by investing activities 79,961 115,979 1,196 197,136

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
    equivalents 32,197 171,242 (2,108) 201,331

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 4,315,092 6,304,158 65,080 10,684,330

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 4,347,289 6,475,400 62,972 10,885,661

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $ 71,784 161,045 (2,423) 230,406

Adjustments to reconcile operating
    income/(loss) to net cash provided by (used
    for) operating activities:

(Increase) in accounts/notes receivable - (15,023) (2,109) (17,132)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payables (949) (33,959) 1,228 (33,680)
(Decrease) in claims payable (118,599) (56,800) - (175,399)

Total adjustments (119,548) (105,782) (881) (226,211)

Net cash provided by (used for) operating
    activities $ (47,764) 55,263 (3,304) 4,195

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Internal Service Funds
Year ended June 30, 2019
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AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a fiduciary capacity for 
individuals, governmental entities, and others.

Strong Motion Instrumentation Fund - This fund is used to collect fees from applicants 
for building permits that are used to regulate the statewide strong motion 
instrumentation program, which accumulates information needed to make homes and 
other structures safe from destructive earthquakes.

County Flood Zone Fund - Flood control fees and charges are collected as a condition 
of land development in order to derive revenue to be used for certain flood control 
purposes.

Environmental Impact Reports Fund - Accumulated in this fund are deposits to 
reimburse the City for costs incurred in the preparation and/or processing of 
environmental review documents.

Planning Security Deposits Fund - This fund was established in order to account for 
deposits placed with the City as required by the Planning Commission.  The deposits 
are performance-oriented and are refunded to the depositor upon successful completion 
of required services or conditions.

Public Works Deposits Fund - This fund was established in order to account for a wide 
variety of deposits placed with the City.  Many of these deposits are performance-
oriented and are refunded to the depositor upon successful completion of required 
services or conditions.

Public Access Television Fund - This fund was established to account for money 
collected to promote and encourage the use of Public Access Television.

Law Enforcement Fund - This fund was established to account for donations and state 
drug seizure funds.

COSCA Fund - Conejo Open Space Conservation Agency is a joint powers agreement 
between the City and Conejo Recreation and Park District.  The City acts as treasurer 
for the Agency for funds received on the Agency's behalf.

Miscellaneous Flow Through Fund - This fund was established to account for 
miscellaneous fees collected that are passed through to other agencies.
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Page 1 of 2

Strong Motion 
Instrumentation

County Flood 
Zone

Environment 
Impact Reports

Planning 
Security 
Deposits

Public Works 
Deposits

Assets:
Cash and investments $ 7,511 1,170 16,777 1,261,398 2,026,417
Accounts receivable - - - - -
Accrued interest receivable - - - - -

Total assets $ 7,511 1,170 16,777 1,261,398 2,026,417
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 7,511 1,170 - 12,325 4,896
Deposits - - 16,777 1,249,073 2,021,521

Total liabilities $ 7,511 1,170 16,777 1,261,398 2,026,417

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Combining Statement of Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

June 30, 2019

138138



Page 2 of 2

Public Access 
Television

Law 
Enforcement COSCA

Misc. Flow 
Through Total

2,355,351 167,712 1,678,325 440,753 7,955,414
86,707 687 2 311 87,707

- 807 8,298 2,148 11,253
2,442,058 169,206 1,686,625 443,212 8,054,374

- 3,464 - 8,253 37,619
2,442,058 165,742 1,686,625 434,959 8,016,755
2,442,058 169,206 1,686,625 443,212 8,054,374
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 Balance
July 1, 2018  Additions  Deductions 

 Balance
June 30, 2019 

Strong Motion Instrumentation
Assets:

Cash and investments $ 7,267 18,837 18,593 7,511
Total assets $ 7,267 18,837 18,593 7,511
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 7,267 17,853 17,609 7,511
Due to other agencies - 18,840 18,840 -

Total liabilities $ 7,267 36,693 36,449 7,511

County Flood Zone
Assets:

Cash and investments $ 41,104 19,610 59,544 1,170
Total assets $ 41,104 19,610 59,544 1,170
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 41,104 19,610 59,544 1,170
Total liabilities $ 41,104 19,610 59,544 1,170

Environment Impact Reports
Assets:

Cash and investments $ 16,777 - - 16,777
Total assets $ 16,777 - - 16,777
Liabilities:

Deposits $ 16,777 - - 16,777
Total liabilities $ 16,777 - - 16,777

(Continued ...)

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

Year ended June 30, 2019
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 Balance
July 1, 2018  Additions  Deductions 

 Balance
June 30, 2019 

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

Year ended June 30, 2019

(Continued ...)
Planning Security Deposits

Assets:
Cash and investments $ 1,054,980 655,665 449,247 1,261,398

Total assets $ 1,054,980 655,665 449,247 1,261,398
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 15,288 198,147 201,110 12,325
Deposits 1,039,692 656,277 446,896 1,249,073

Total liabilities $ 1,054,980 854,424 648,006 1,261,398

Public Works Deposits
Assets:

Cash and investments $ 2,089,188 276,627 339,398 2,026,417
Total assets $ 2,089,188 276,627 339,398 2,026,417
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 46,567 273,228 314,899 4,896
Deposits 2,042,621 306,720 327,820 2,021,521

Total liabilities $ 2,089,188 579,948 642,719 2,026,417

Public Access Television
Assets:

Cash and investments $ 2,295,877 509,275 449,801 2,355,351
Accounts receivable 245,756 86,707 245,756 86,707

Total assets $ 2,541,633 595,982 695,557 2,442,058
Liabilities:

Deposits $ 2,541,633 595,982 695,557 2,442,058
Total liabilities $ 2,541,633 595,982 695,557 2,442,058

(Continued ...)

141141



 Balance
July 1, 2018  Additions  Deductions 

 Balance
June 30, 2019 

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

Year ended June 30, 2019

(Continued ...)
Law Enforcement

Assets:
Cash and investments $ 177,955 67,993 78,236 167,712
Accounts receivable - 687 - 687
Accrued interest receivable 822 2,321 2,336 807

Total assets $ 178,777 71,001 80,572 169,206
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 14,996 67,843 79,375 3,464
Deposits 163,781 64,677 62,716 165,742

Total liabilities $ 178,777 132,520 142,091 169,206

COSCA
Assets:

Cash and investments $ 1,591,806 116,179 29,660 1,678,325
Accounts receivable 580 84,789 85,367 2
Accrued interest receivable 7,178 23,783 22,663 8,298

Total assets $ 1,599,564 224,751 137,690 1,686,625
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ - 6,430 6,430 -
Deposits 1,599,564 116,720 29,659 1,686,625

Total liabilities $ 1,599,564 123,150 36,089 1,686,625

(Continued ...)
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 Balance
July 1, 2018  Additions  Deductions 

 Balance
June 30, 2019 

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

Year ended June 30, 2019

(Continued ...)
Miscellaneous Flow Through

Assets:
Cash and investments $ 429,778 47,358 36,383 440,753
Accounts receivable - 311 - 311
Accrued interest receivable 1,924 6,206 5,982 2,148

Total assets $ 431,702 53,875 42,365 443,212
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 4,822 69,583 66,152 8,253
Deposits 426,880 18,079 10,000 434,959

Total liabilities $ 431,702 87,662 76,152 443,212

Total Agency Funds
Assets:

Cash and investments $ 7,704,732 1,711,544 1,460,862 7,955,414
Accounts receivable 246,336 172,494 331,123 87,707
Accrued interest receivable 9,924 32,310 30,981 11,253

Total assets $ 7,960,992 1,916,348 1,822,966 8,054,374
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 130,044 652,694 745,119 37,619
Due to other agencies - 18,840 18,840 -
Deposits 7,830,948 1,758,455 1,572,648 8,016,755

Total liabilities $ 7,960,992 2,429,989 2,336,607 8,054,374
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Statistical Section

This part of the City of Thousand Oaks CAFR presents detailed information regarding 
five categories:  financial trends, revenue capacity, debt capacity, demographic and 
economic information, and operating information.  These tables are presented as a 
context for understanding the City’s overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends
These tables contain trend information over multiple years in 
order to better help the reader understand how the City’s 
financial performance has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These tables contain information regarding the City’s largest 
own-source revenue, property tax and sales tax.

Debt Capacity
These tables present information regarding the City’s current 
debt requirements and the City’s financial ability to issue 
additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These tables present demographic and economic indicators 
that provide the reader a better understanding of the 
environment within which the City’s activities take place and 
allow for comparison between cities.

Operating Information
These tables provide information regarding the City’s 
operations and resources in order to help the reader gain 
knowledge about how the City’s financial statistics relate to 
the services the City provides.
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Page 1 of 2

2010 2011 2012 2013
General Fund

Reserved 7,452,277$    -$    -$    -$    
Unreserved 71,441,836 - - -
Nonspendable - 386,487 458,467 444,070
Restricted - - - -
Committed - 30,382,360 29,133,665 32,150,306
Assigned - 47,971,223 49,836,670 50,970,528
Unassigned - 75,762 1,018,694 1,096,184

Total General Fund 78,894,113$  78,815,832$  80,447,496$  84,661,088$  

All other governmental funds
Reserved 35,259,948$  -$    -$    -$    
Unreserved, reported in:

Special revenue funds 18,554,270 - - -
Capital projects funds 46,906,091 - - -

Nonspendable - 9,454,786 671,083 671,083
Restricted - 65,811,852 33,496,970 25,270,524
Committed - 16,273,358 1,484,061 1,643,144
Assigned - 18,085,550 19,800,800 19,345,705
Unassigned - (383,659) (404,032) (38,159)

Total all other governmental funds 100,720,309$ 109,241,887$ 55,048,882$  46,892,297$  

Note:  
        The City of Thousand Oaks implemented GASB Statement No. 54 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, therefore 
         information on fund balance categories is unavailable for prior fiscal years.

Source:  City of Thousand Oaks

Table 3

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS
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Total Fund Balances
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Page 2 of 2

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

-$    -$    -$    -$    -$    -$    
- - - - - -

3,925,151 3,945,620 3,911,863 2,236,692 2,269,250 2,317,357
- - - - - 18,222,316

30,679,785 41,296,049 36,627,164 49,360,297 40,743,359 37,881,913
53,756,465 48,584,436 62,654,198 61,225,142 72,064,828 68,175,670

1,033,728 1,878,673 2,399,689 2,317,700 1,000,000 615,196
89,395,129$  95,704,778$  105,592,914$ 115,139,831$ 116,077,437$ 127,212,452$

-$    -$    -$    -$    -$    -$    

- - - - - -
- - - - - -

671,084 671,083 - - - -
42,377,963 35,825,757 40,171,977 35,187,559 30,564,146 38,811,455

1,692,486 1,802,421 1,940,009 2,032,613 2,052,730 2,130,376
18,895,556 17,808,062 18,791,815 18,345,221 21,647,443 14,204,691

- - (26,699) (54,303) (7,040) -
63,637,089$  56,107,323$  60,877,102$  55,511,090$  54,257,279$  55,146,522$  
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Fiscal Total
Year Taxable Taxable Direct

Ended Assessed Assessed Tax
June 30 Secured Unsecured Value Secured Unsecured Value Rate (1)

2010 22,869,843,040$ 618,113,555$ 23,487,956,595$ 2,131,628,371$ 190,361,183$ 2,321,989,554$  -

2011 22,512,173,551 595,248,952 23,107,422,503 1,999,781,752 181,279,237 2,181,060,989 -

2012 22,678,655,445 578,996,865 23,257,652,310 2,012,751,826 181,485,437 2,194,237,263 -

2013 22,849,995,645 564,130,360 23,414,126,005 2,036,945,616 180,730,861 2,217,676,477 -

2014 23,611,025,109 565,199,407 24,176,224,516 2,096,540,686 197,333,069 2,293,873,755 -

2015 24,918,441,906 577,344,968 25,495,786,874 2,188,046,023 205,605,677 2,393,651,700 -

2016 26,121,693,208 571,824,100 26,693,517,308 2,343,704,083 208,179,143 2,551,883,226 -

2017 27,235,355,088 582,728,213 27,818,083,301 2,544,403,443 215,429,196 2,759,832,639 -

2018 28,610,970,248 553,669,446 29,164,639,694 2,709,724,562 214,155,260 2,923,879,822 -

2019 29,853,762,564 589,039,692 30,442,802,256 2,850,262,931 214,360,133 3,064,623,064 -

Notes:
(1) The City does not have a direct property tax rate.

(2)

Source:  Ventura County Auditor-Controller

The former Thousand Oaks Redevelopment Agency was dissolved on February 1, 2012, through the California State
Supreme Court decision on Assembly Bill X1 26. 

City Former Redevelopment Agency (2)

Table 5

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Total
Direct &

Fiscal Metropolitan Overlapping
Year Water (2) Rates

2010 - 1.000000 0.026400 0.013900 0.004300 1.044600

2011 - 1.000000 0.028500 0.015100 0.003700 1.047300

2012 - 1.000000 0.030700 0.014000 0.003700 1.048400

2013 - 1.000000 0.032400 0.019100 0.003500 1.055000

2014 - 1.000000 0.032700 0.016700 0.003500 1.052900

2015 - 1.000000 0.032900 0.017600 0.003500 1.054000

2016 - 1.000000 0.031800 0.013000 0.003500 1.048300

2017 - 1.000000 0.032000 0.015500 0.003500 1.051000

2018 - 1.000000 0.021300 0.015100 0.003500 1.039900

2019 - 1.000000 0.020900 0.015200 0.003500 1.039600

Notes:
(1) The City does not have a direct rate.

(2)

(3)

Source: Ventura County Auditor-Controller

Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments and/or special districts that apply to property
owners within certain geographic boundaries in the City.

City Direct 
Rate (1)

Conejo Valley 
Unified School 

District Bond (2)

In 1978, California voters passed Proposition 13 which sets the property tax rate at 1 percent fixed amount.
This 1 percent is shared by all taxing agencies for which the subject property resided within. In addition to the
1 percent fixed amount, property owners are charged taxes as a percentage of assessed property values for
the payment of school and water district bonds.

Table 6

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Prop 13 
Maximum 1% 

Tax (3)

Overlapping Rates
Ventura

Community
College Bond (2)
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Calendar 
Year

Apparel 
Stores

General 
Merchandise

Food
Stores

Eating and 
Drinking 

Establishments
Building 
Materials

Auto 
Dealers and 

Supplies
Service 
Stations

Other Retail 
Stores

All Other 
Outlets Total

Total 
Direct 

Sales Tax 
Rate (1)

2009 118,606$ 176,490$    94,405$  246,060$  102,600$   575,477$   151,680$   412,056$   515,029$   2,392,403$ -

2010 121,944 181,187 93,091 252,305 97,770 605,900 169,709 426,024 496,409 2,444,339 -

2011 126,624 186,051 92,876 267,174 99,785 633,027 206,485 439,468 516,963 2,568,453 -

2012 130,175 185,207 95,751 286,385 102,679 689,807 220,282 439,270 520,425 2,669,981 -

2013 135,135 185,757 97,931 301,340 110,826 723,102 213,980 452,188 510,048 2,730,307 -

2014 137,718 171,953 104,993 309,383 116,109 779,819 207,189 468,498 564,595 2,860,257 -

2015 134,786 172,903 108,512 324,856 124,378 857,268 175,810 479,729 620,102 2,998,344 -

2016 132,750 167,712 111,289 336,018 125,530 864,638 155,546 458,628 616,444 2,968,555 -

2017 128,375 156,234 111,916 351,554 134,877 941,618 171,230 461,621 687,962 3,145,387 -

2018 126,688 151,074 113,555 357,304 141,581 923,273 199,188 458,878 741,555 3,213,096 -

(1) The City does not have a direct sales tax rate.

The names of the ten largest revenue payers are confidential. The categories presented are intended to provide alternative information regarding the
sources of taxable sales. Calendar year 2019 not available.

Sources:  State of California Board of Equalization and The HdL Companies

Table 10

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS

Taxable Sales by Category
Last Ten Calendar Years
(in thousands of dollars)

 $-
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2010 84,971,498$  68,660,000$  16,311,498$  0.07% 128.79$  

2011 80,100,748 64,340,000 15,760,748 0.07% 123.84

2012 15,259,998 - 15,259,998 0.07% 119.19

2013 14,940,093 - 14,940,093 0.06% 116.59

2014 14,399,035 - 14,399,035 0.06% 111.59

2015 13,832,978 - 13,832,978 0.05% 106.94

2016 13,246,920 - 13,246,920 0.05% 100.08

2017 12,640,863 - 12,640,863 0.05% 96.16

2018 12,004,805 - 12,004,805 0.04% 92.21

2019 11,348,748 - 11,348,748 0.04% 87.60

Notes: 
(1)

(2)

(3) See Table 5 for property value data.

(4) See Table 16 for population data.

Sources: Ventura County Auditor-Controller, State of California Department of Finance, and the 
City of Thousand Oaks

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percentage of 
Actual 

Taxable Value 
of Property (3) 

Fiscal 
Year

Gross Bonded 
Debt (1)

Net Bonded 
Debt

Less:  Debt 
Payable from 

Redevelopment 
Revenues (2)

Debt Per 
Capita (4)

The Agency was dissolved as of February 1, 2012, through the Supreme Court
decision on Assembly Bill X1 26. See Note 15 for more information on the dissolution.

Table 12

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS

Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Gross bonded debt includes all long-term debt except worker's compensation payable,
accrued vacation, and arbitrage rebate tax, net of unamortized premiums and deferred 
amounts.
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Amount
Net General Applicable to
Obligation City of

Debt Thousand Oaks
Jurisdiction Outstanding June 30, 2019

Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt:
 Metropolitan Water District 48,050,000$     1.044 % 501,642$   
 Ventura County Community College District 275,097,579 22.573 % 62,097,777
 Conejo Valley Unified School District 94,534,279 90.301 % 85,365,399
 City of Thousand Oaks Community Facilities Districts 19,299,000 100.000 % 19,299,000

Overlapping General Fund Debt:
 Ventura County General Fund Obligations 324,780,000 22.565 % 73,286,607
 Ventura County Superintendent of Schools Certificates 9,220,000 22.565 % 2,080,493
 Triunfo County Sanitation District Certificates of Participation 10,447,018 49.113 % 5,130,844

Subtotal overlapping and assessment debt 247,761,762

City Direct Debt:
   City of Thousand Oaks Revenue Lease Refunding Bonds 11,348,748 100.000 % 11,348,748

Subtotal direct debt 11,348,748

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt (2) 259,110,510$   

Notes:
          (1)   Percentage of overlapping agency's assessed valuation located within boundaries of the City.

          (2)   Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and tax
allocation bonds and non-bonded capital lease obligations.

Source:    California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

Oaks (1)

Percentage
Applicable
to City of
Thousand

Table 13

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt
June 30, 2019
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2010 2011 2012 2013

Debt limit 866,528,344$ 872,161,962$ 872,161,962$ 878,029,725$

Total net debt applicable to limit 16,405,000 15,850,000 15,345,000 14,825,000

Legal debt margin 850,123,344$ 856,311,962$ 856,816,962$ 863,204,725$

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as percentage of debt limit 1.89% 1.82% 1.76% 1.69%

Note:
(1)

Sources: Ventura County Auditor-Controller and the City of Thousand Oaks

Per California Government Code Section 43605,15 percent of the assessed value shall
be used for debt limit calculations. However, as of fiscal year 1981-82, assessed value
no longer was calculated as 25 percent of market value and instead is calculated as 100
percent of market value. In order to reflect the intent of the debt limit stipulation, the 15
percent has been adjusted to one-fourth of 15 percent (3.75 percent) in this calculation.

Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 14

City of Thousand Oaks
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2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

906,608,419$ 956,092,008$ 1,001,006,889$ 1,043,178,124$ 1,093,673,989$ 1,141,605,085$

14,290,000 13,730,000 13,150,000 12,550,000 11,920,000 11,348,748

892,318,419$ 942,362,008$ 987,856,889$ 1,030,628,124$ 1,081,753,989$ 1,130,256,337$

1.58% 1.44% 1.31% 1.20% 1.09% 0.99%

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2018-19

Assessed value 30,442,802,256$
Debt limit (3.75% of total assessed value) (1) 1,141,605,085

Less net amount of debt applicable to debt limit 11,348,748
Legal debt margin 1,130,256,337$

0.00%
0.20%
0.40%
0.60%
0.80%
1.00%
1.20%
1.40%
1.60%
1.80%
2.00%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Percent of Debt Compared to Debt Limit

16166



CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS

167



168



Per Capita
Calendar Personal Personal School Unemployment

 Year Population (1) Income Income Enrollment (1) Rate (2)

2010 126,655 5,708,720,815$   45,073$  21,202 8.3%

2011 127,264 5,421,319,136 42,599 21,111 8.0%

2012 127,431 5,379,754,527 42,217 20,686 7.1%

2013 128,252 6,015,660,060 46,905 20,533 5.7%

2014 128,942 5,729,795,654 44,437 20,066 4.8%

2015 129,349 5,720,500,917 44,225 19,706 5.1%

2016 132,365 6,703,086,699 50,641 19,293 5.3%

2017 131,457 6,510,013,554 49,522 19,008 4.3%

2018 130,196 7,512,103,490 57,698 18,722 3.6%

2019 129,557 7,152,010,214 55,204 18,440 2.3%

Notes: 
(1) Population and School Enrollment figures are as of January of each year. 

(2) Unemployment figure is as of June of each year. 

Per the California Department of Finance, prior year's city population estimates may be revised.

Sources:  California Department of Finance
University of California, Santa Barbara
Conejo Valley Unified School District
State of California Employment Development Department

Table 16

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years
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Percent Percent
of Total City of Total City

Employer Rank Employees  Employment Rank Employees Employment
Amgen Inc. 1 5,000        7.9% 1 6,600        9.3%

Conejo Valley Unified School District 2 3,200        5.1% 3 1,823        2.6%

Los Robles Regional Medical Center 3 1,543        2.4% 4 1,469        2.1%

Anthem Inc. (2) 4 1,002        1.6% 2 3,620        5.1%

California Lutheran University 5 1,117 1.8% 10 472 0.7%

Takeda  (1) 6 700           1.1% 5 1,050        1.5%

Skyworks Solutions Inc. 7 670 1.1% 9 500 0.7%

PennyMac 8 643           1.0% -                0.0%

City of Thousand Oaks 9 534           0.8% 7 623 0.9%

Sage Publications 10 477           0.8% -                0.0%

Silver Star Automotive Group -                0.0% 8 580 0.8%

Verizon -                0.0% 6 717 1.0%

Total 14,886      23.6% 17,454 24.5%

Notes:

Sources:  City of Thousand Oaks and the State of California Employment Development Department

Table 17

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago
Principal Employers

          (2) Formally Anthem Blue Cross

          (1) Formally Baxter BioScience, Baxalta, and Shire

2019 2010
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Function 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

General Government
Central Administration 27 25 24 22 22 23 24 23 27 26
Finance 49 48 46 44 48 51 51 50 52 56
Legal 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 4 5 5

Police (1) 112 111 109 108 108 108 108 108 108 108

Community Development
Building & Safety 29 27 20 18 17 18 19 20 16 16
Planning 32 27 32 27 26 23 25 25 25 26
Redevelopment (2) 5 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Public Works 
Central Administration 81 80 83 78 74 72 73 75 74 73
Landscape 27 24 25 25 25 25 24 24 23 22
Streets & Highways 29 27 25 25 26 26 27 24 25 27
Wastewater 39 39 40 40 39 38 34 33 34 34
Water 10 13 12 12 12 13 12 16 17 16

Library 45 38 37 36 38 34 32 30 31 35

Cultural Affairs (3) 19 16 15 15 14 13 13 12 14 15

Total (4) 510 485 473 455 454 449 447 444 451 459

Notes: 
 (1) The City contracts with the County of Ventura for police services. 

(2)

 (3)

 (4) 

Source:  City of Thousand Oaks

Totals do not include unfilled (vacant) positions or hourly employees.

The Agency was dissolved as of February 1, 2012, through the California State Supreme Court decision on Assembly Bill 
X1 26. See Note 15 for more information on the dissolution.

In fiscal year 2009-10 the Community & Cultural Services Department was renamed Cultural Affairs Department. 

Table 18

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS

Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Function
Police:
   Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Golf Courses:
   Municipal golf courses 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Libraries:
   Public libraries 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Highways and streets:

Streets (miles) (1) 377 377 377 377 377 377 377 377 377 383
Streetlights (2) 7,841 7,829 7,836 7,846 7,845 7,861 7,886 7,936 7,954 7,919
Traffic signals (3) 137 137 140 144 154 154 154 154 154 157

Water:
Water mains (miles) (4) 317 320 349 351 351 332 332 334 334 336
Fire hydrants (5) 1,964 1,964 1,965 1,970 1,967 1,982 1,984 1,976 2,006 2,005

Wastewater:
Sanitary sewers (miles) (6) 560 563 409 409 413 415 415 415 409 415

Notes: 
(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

Source:    City of Thousand Oaks

Includes privately owned hydrants representing less than 1.5% of hydrants citywide. Fiscal
year 2016-17 decrease due to data corrections.

Fiscal year 2011-12 decrease is a result of an updated Geographic Information System.
Also, it was discovered that previous years included abandoned lines. Fiscal year 2017-18
decrease is a result of gravity mains that were previously identified as city-owned and
reclassified as private.

Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal year 2009-10 decrease is a result of an updated Pavement Management Study which
revealed that 10 miles of local streets previously listed as City streets were actually private.
Fiscal year 2018-19 increase is a result of an updated Pavement Management Study which
revealed six miles of local streets were omitted on the previous study.  

Fiscal year 2018-19 decrease due is a result of an updated inventory count provided by
Southern California Edison.

CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS

Table 20

Includes predestrian signals.

Fiscal year 2014-15 decrease due to deactivated water meters.

17

174


